
Agenda January 16, 2024 
Removed on ________at _________by_________ 

1 
 

AGENDA 
CITY OF TEAGUE 

BOARD OF ALDERMEN 
SPECIAL CALLED MEETING 
JANUARY 19, 2024, 6:00 P.M. 

 
AGENDA 

 
Notice is hereby given that a Special Called Meeting of the Governing Body of the City of Teague will be held on JANUARY 
19, 2024, at 6:00 P.M. The meeting will be held in the COUNCIL ROOM, LOCATED AT TEAGUE CITY HALL 105 
SOUTH 4th AVENUE TEAGUE, TEXAS 75860. PURSUANT TO SECTION 551.127 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT 
CODE, MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL MAY BE PARTICIPATING REMOTELY IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE 
TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT, All Agenda items are subject to action. The Board of Aldermen reserves the right to meet 
in executive closed session on any Agenda items listed below, as authorized by Texas Government Code Sections 551.071 
(Consultation with Attorney); 551.072 (Deliberation and Real Property); 551.073 (Deliberations about Gifts and Donations); 
551.074 (Personnel Matters); 551.076 (Deliberations about Security Devices) and 551.087 (Economic Development). 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ANNOUNCE QUORUM IS PRESENT: 
 

2. INVOCATION: 
 

3. PLEDGE TO THE FLAG: 
 

4. ROLL CALL: 
 

5. VISITORS/CITIZENS COMMENTS: This is an opportunity for the public to address the Council on any matter 
included on the agenda, except public hearings. Comments related to public hearings will be heard when the specific 
hearing begins. Public comments are limited to three (3) minutes per speaker unless the speaker requires the assistance 
of a translator, in which case the speaker is limited to six (6) minutes, in accordance with applicable law. To address the 
council speakers must complete a speaker Form and provide it to the City Secretary prior to the start of the meeting. 
each speaker shall approach the podium and state his/her name and street address before speaking. Speakers shall 
address the council with civility that is conducive to appropriate public discussion. The public cannot speak from the 
gallery but only from the podium. Per the Texas Open Meetings Act, the council is not permitted to take action on or 
discuss any item not listed on the agenda. The Council may: (1) make a statement of fact regarding the item; (2) make 
a recitation of existing policy; or (3) propose the item be placed on a future agenda, in accordance with council 
procedures. 

 
6. CONSENT AGENDA: 

a. Approve Minutes from the December 18, 2023, Meeting of the Board of Aldermen. 
b. Approve the Accounts Payable and Payroll Check Registers for the month of December 2023. 
c. Accept the Financial Statement for December 2023. 
d. Accept the quarterly investment report for 4th Quarter 2023. 
 

7. OLD BUSINESS: 
a. Discussion and Possible Action on approving replacing/upgrading the fire suppression system at the Community 

Center, Work Force, and Senior Center building. 
 

8. NEW BUSINESS: 
a. Discussion and possible action to approve the execution of the Audit Engagement Letter from Donald L. 

Allman, CPA, PC.. 
b. Discussion and possible action on approving ordinance number: 2024-01-19 City Administrator/Secretary of 

the Code of Ordinances of the City by separating the positions; providing a savings clause, providing a 
severability clause, and providing an effective date. 

c. Discussion and possible action to determine if the city secretary and city administrator positions will be full 
time or part time and to establish a salary for these respective positions. 

d. Discussion and possible action on approving resolution number: 2024-01-19, A resolution calling for a 
general election to be held May 04, 2024, for the purpose of electing a mayor and two Aldermen (Place 
Numbers I and III), making provisions for the conduct of the election, providing other matters relating to the 
election, and providing an effective date.  
 



Agenda January 16, 2024 
Removed on ________at _________by_________ 

2 
 

 
e. Discussion and possible action on appointing a municipal court judge.  
f. Discussion regarding the possibility of having two regular meetings each month. 
g. Discussion regarding conducting annual evaluations for department heads. 
h. Discussion regarding comprehensive review and recommendations for code of ordinances  
i. Discussion regarding setting a bond proposal for election. 
j. Discussion and possible action regarding the billing for city services to the Teague Housing 

Authority. 
 

9. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
a.  § 551.072:  Deliberation regarding the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property: Scout House. 

 
10. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION - In accordance with Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, the City Council will 

reconvene into Regular Session to consider action, if any, on matters discussed in Executive Session. 
 

11. PRESENTATION AND DISCUSSION OF DEPARTMENT REPORTS: 
a. PUBLIC WORKS - JACOB COWLING, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 
b. POLICE DEPARTMENT - DEWAYNE PHILPOTT, CHIEF OF POLICE 
c. COURTS - JOHN BELL, COURT CLERK 
d. LIBRARY - MELISSA SATTERWHITE, LIBRARIAN 
e. EDC - STEPHANIE BURNS, PRESIDENT 
f. ACO/CODE ENFORCEMENT - JASON FISK, ACO/CODE 
 

12. ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 

13. ADJOURN: 
 

CERTIFICATION 

 
I, D. DeWayne Philpott, Interim City Secretary of the governing body of the City of Teague, Texas, Do HEREBY 
CERTIFY that the above notice of the meeting of the governing body of the City of Teague, Texas is a true and 
correct copy of said notice posted at the City of Teague, Texas in a place convenient and readily accessible to the 
Public at all times. 

Witness my hand and seal of the City of Teague and posted on this ______ day of ______________ ______, at 
_______ __m and will remain posted continuously for at least 72 hours preceding scheduled time of the meeting.  

             
        ____________________________________              

                               D. DeWayne Philpott, Interim City Secretary 
 
 

 
 

Any person interested in attending the meeting with special communication or accommodations needs to 
contact City Hall 48 hours prior to the meeting at 254-739-2547 to make arrangements. 

"The City of Teague is an equal opportunity provider and employer." 



































































































































































































 
Ordinance  2024-01-19  Page 1 of 5 

CITY OF TEAGUE, TEXAS 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-01-19 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF TEAGUE, TEXAS AMENDING 
CHAPTER 9. PERSONNEL ARTICLE 9.300 CITY 
ADMINISTRATOR/SECRETARY OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 
THE CITY BY SEPARATING THE POSITION; PROVIDING A 
SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Teague, Texas (the "City" or "Teague") is a Type A General- Law 

municipality, and the Board of Aldermen may by ordinance adopted under Texas Local Government 
Code Section 22.071 provide for the appointment of officers, and confer on such officers the powers 
and duties provided with such position; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen has investigated and determined that it would be 

advantageous and beneficial to the citizens of the Teague to amend Ordinance No. 2013-04-16 adopted 
April 16, 2013, regarding the city administrator/secretary position; and to amend Ordinance No. 2021-
01-19 adopted January 19, 2021, regarding the duties of City Administrator/Secretary, Ordinance No. 
2009-11-04 adopted November 09, 2009, regarding delegation of authority, and to codify and elaborate 
upon action taken at the January 9, 2023, and February 13, 2023 meetings, 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF 

THE CITY OF TEAGUE, TEXAS THAT: 
 

Section l. Findings incorporated. The findings set forth above are incorporated into the body of this 
Ordinance as if fully set forth herein. 

 
Section 2. Amendments. The Code of Ordinances (the "Code") of the City of Teague, Texas (the 
"City") is hereby amended as follows: Chapter 9 (Personnel), Article 9. 300 (City Administrator / 
Secretary), of the Code is hereby replaced in its entirety with the following:  

 

ARTICLE 9.300 CITY ADMINISTRATOR AND CITY SECRETARY 

 

SECTION 9.301 Creation of Office, Appointment and Removal 

 

(a) The office of city administrator is hereby created. 

 

(a -  1)   The office of city secretary is hereby created. 

 

(b) The appointment of the city administrator and city secretary shall be by a majority vote of the 

aldermen in attendance at the meeting at which the matter is considered, subject to a quorum of 

the aldermen being present and voting. 

 

 

 



 
Ordinance  2024-01-19  Page 2 of 5 

(c) The city administrator and city secretary will serve at the pleasure of the board of aldermen 

subject to the applicable removal provisions of chapter 22 of the Local Government Code, and 

subject to the terms of any written employment agreement between the city and city 

administrator or between the city and the city secretary, as applicable.  

 
 

(d) The term of office for the city administrator shall be for one fiscal year subject to reappointment 

at the beginning of the next fiscal year (and subsequent one fiscal year reappointments) at the 

discretion of the board of aldermen. If no action is taken on reappointment, the city 

administrator shall continue to serve in a holdover capacity until reappointed or replaced by the 

board of aldermen.  

 

SECTION 9.302 Duties 

 

(a) The duties of the city administrator shall include: 

 

(1) Management and supervision of the day-to-day operations of the city; subject to the 

supervision of the Mayor in the Mayor’s role as chief executive of the city, 

 

(2) Keeping the board of aldermen informed as to the affairs of the city, city operations;  

 

(3) Monitoring city contracts for performance; 

 

(4) Applying for and administering grants and assistance from federal, state or 

private sources; 

 

(5) Studying city needs and operations and proposing short- and long-term plans for 

city operations and services; 

 

(6) Keeping an inventory of city property; 

 

(7) Performing such other lawful functions or tasks as directed by the board of    

aldermen; 

 

(b) The duties of the city secretary shall include: 

 

(1) Management and supervision of city finances; 



 
Ordinance  2024-01-19  Page 3 of 5 

(2) Supporting the Mayor, in the Mayor’s capacity as city budget officer, preparing the 

proposed annual budget for the board of aldermen’s consideration in accordance with 

applicable law; 

 

(3) Keeping and maintaining records of the city’s business and finance; 

 

(4) Collection of funds due to the city; 

 

(5) Payment of accounts due and payable from the city as directed by the board of 

aldermen; 

 

(6) Acting as the general purchasing agent for the city (no purchase shall be made, or 

obligation incurred, except upon authorization by the board of aldermen; 

 

(7) Handling and maintaining records of the city’s payroll; 

 

(8) Preparing, posting, and/or publishing all notices of meetings, proposed actions, 

actions or ordinances of the board of aldermen as required by law, and preparing and 

transmitting all reports required of the city by applicable law; 

 

(9) Keeping the minutes of all meetings of the board of aldermen; 

 

(10) Exercising all the powers and performing all the duties of a municipal secretary 

pursuant to sec. 22.073, Local Government Code, or other state statute, and any 

successor to such statute,  

 

(11) Acting as the city’s elections officer, and preparing and procuring all notices, sites, 

supplies, and other matters necessary for the conduct of municipal elctions; 

 

(12) Acting as ex-officio city comptroller and city collector; 

 

(13) Serve as the clerk of the municipal court. 

 

(14) Performing such other lawful functions or tasks as directed by the board of aldermen; 

 



 
Ordinance  2024-01-19  Page 4 of 5 

Section 9.303 Delegation of Authority 
 

In the event the number of councilmembers necessary to establish a quorum cannot be achieved 
due to vacancies on the council, the city administrator shall have authority to conduct city 
business in concert with their duties as prescribed in Article 9.302 or adopted city policies.  
 
The city secretary shall have authority to conduct city business in concert with their duties as 
prescribed in Article 9.302 and where the same shall consist of the ministerial duties of 
payment of bills, payroll, and expenses necessary for the operation of the city's departments. 
The city secretary shall have authority to pay such expenses without need of council approval 
where such expenses do not exceed approved budgeted amounts. Upon request, the city 
secretary shall provide the books and statements of account to the mayor or any member of the 
city council. This delegation of authority does not extend to the making of administrative 
decisions not otherwise previously set forth by resolution, ordinance, or adopted city policies. 



 
Ordinance  2024-01-19  Page 5 of 5 

Section 3. Savings; Repealer. This Ordinance Shall be cumulative of all other ordinances of the 
City and shall not repeal any of the provisions of those ordinances except in those instances where 
the provisions of those Ordinances are in direct conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance. 
Provided, however, that the repeal of such ordinances or parts of such ordinances, and the 
amendments and changes made by this Ordinance, shall not affect any right, property or claim 
which was or is vested in the City, or any act done, or right accruing or accrued, or established, 
or any suit, action or proceeding had or commenced before the time when this Ordinance shall 
take effect; nor shall said repeals, amendments or changes affect any offense committed, or any 
penalty or forfeiture incurred, or any suit or prosecution pending at the time when this Ordinance 
shall take effect under any of the ordinances or sections thereof so repealed, amended or changed; 
and to that extent and for that purpose the provisions of such ordinances 
or parts of such ordinances shall be deemed to remain and continue in full force and effect. 

 

Section 4. Severability. The sections, paragraphs, sentences, phrases, clauses and words of this 
Ordinance are severable, and if any section, paragraph, sentence, phrase, clause or word in this 
Ordinance or application thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid or unconstitutional 
by a Court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this Ordinance, and the Board of Aldermen hereby declares that it would have passed 
such remaining portions of this Ordinance despite such invalidity, which remaining portions shall 
remain in full force and effect. 

 
Section 5. Formatting changes. The City Secretary is authorized to make non-substantive changes to the 
numbering and formatting of the code amendment provided for herin as necessary to maintain consistency 
throughout the Code.  
 
Section 6. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon passage of 
ordinance, or as otherwise provided in Chapter 52 of the Texas Local Government Code, and other 
applicable law. To the extent permitted by law, the effective date of this Ordinance shall not be 
delayed by the satisfaction of publication requirements. 

 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by the Board of Aldermen of the City of Teague, Texas this 

the ____ day of _________________, 2024, by a vote of _____ (ayes) to _____ (nays) to _____ 
(abstentions). 

 
 
 
 

 
David Huffman, Mayor 

 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
By: ____________________________________ 
       D. DeWayne Philpott, Interim City Secretary 



































Resolution 2024-01-19 Page 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-01-19 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF TEAGUE, 
TEXAS, CALLING FOR A GENERAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON MAY 04, 2024, 
FOR THE PURPOSE OF ELECTING A MAYOR AND TWO (2) ALDERMEN (PLACE 
NOS. I AND III); MAKING PROVISIONS FOR THE CONDUCT OF THE 
ELECTION; PROVIDING OTHER MATTERS RELATING TO THE ELECTION; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS Section 41.001 of the Texas Election Code (the “Code”) specifies that the first Saturday in 
May shall be a “Uniform Election Date” and that a general election of a City may be held on such a day; 
and 

WHEREAS State law requires that a general election be held; and 

WHEREAS, by this Resolution, it is the intention of the Board of Aldermen to designate all requirements 
of an Election Order and Notice of Election in accordance with state law, and.  

WHEREAS the Board of Aldermen wish to designate certain officials and contract with Freestone County 
Election Department to conduct various aspects of election services for the City.  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOVLED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN 
OF THE CITY OF TEAGUE, TEXAS 

Section 1. General Election Ordered.  A general election is hereby called and ordered to be held on May 
4, 2024, for the purpose of electing a Mayor and two (2) Aldermen: Alderman Place I and Alderman Place 
III, of the City of Teague, Texas. A candidate for Mayor and a candidate to fill Place I and III will be elected 
to serve a two-year term.  

Section 2. Joint Election Administration Contract.  The City Secretary is hereby authorized to contract 
with Freestone County ("County") for election administration services (the "Agreement") in substantially 
the form of the attached Exhibit A. The Board of Aldermen further authorizes and agrees to the conduct of 
a joint election with other political subdivisions within Freestone County, provided that such political 
subdivisions hold an election on May 4, 2024, in all or part of the same territory as the city (the "Political 
Subdivisions"). Any joint election shall be conducted in accordance with state law, this Resolution, and the 
Agreement with Freestone County. In the event of a conflict between this Resolution and the Agreement, 
the Agreement shall control. 

Section 3. Election Precincts and Election Day Polling Place. The election precincts shall be those 
established by the County. The polling locations shall be those designated by the Freestone County 
Elections Office. 

Section 4. Election Officers.   The Freestone County Election Officer is appointed to serve as the City's 
Election Officer and Early Voting Clerk and shall coordinate, supervise, and conduct all aspects of 
administering voting for the City's joint election. The Freestone County Elections Officer assumes the 
responsibility for recruiting election personnel and training thereof. 

Section 5. Early Voting. Early voting in said election shall be designated by Freestone County 
Elections Department in accordance with state law. Requests for applications for early voting ballots by 
mail should be mailed to Freestone County Elections Department, P.O. Box 1150, Fairfield, Texas 
75840. 



 
 
Resolution 2024-01-19  Page 2 

Section 6. Candidate Filing Period. In accordance with Section 143.007 of the Texas Election Code 
("Code"), the filing period for an application for a place on the ballot, for this election, is declared to 
begin at 8:00 a.m. on Wednesday, January 17, 2024, and will conclude at 5:00 p.m. on Friday, February 
16, 2024. All candidates for the offices to be filled, in the election, to be held on May 4, 2024, shall file 
their application to become candidates with the City Secretary at City Hall, 105 South 4th Avenue, Teague, 
Texas, on any weekday that is not a City holiday between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., and all of said 
applications shall be on a form as prescribed by the Election Code of the State of Texas. 
 
Section 7. Drawing. The order in which the names of the candidates are to be printed on  the ballot 
shall be determined by a drawing conducted by the City Secretary, as provided by the Election Code. 
Such drawing will be held at 12:00 p.m. on Thursday, February 23, 2024, at City Hall     in the Council 
Chamber. 
 
Section 8. Notice and Publication. This Resolution shall serve as the Order of Election (as required by 
Section 3.001 of the Code) for the General Election. A copy of the Resolution shall    be posted on the 
bulletin board used for posting notices of the meetings of the Board of Aldermen at least twenty-one (21) 
days before the election. Notice of General Election (as required by Section 4.001 of the Code) shall be 
published in the newspaper in accordance with state law. A copy of the Notice of General Election shall be 
posted on the bulletin board used for posting notices of the meetings   of the Board of Aldermen at least 
twenty-one (21) days before the election. 
 
Section 9. Governing Law. The election shall be held in accordance with the Constitution of the State 
of Texas and the Texas Election Code, and all resident, who are qualified, voters of the City shall be 
eligible to vote at the election. 
 
Section 10. Necessary Actions. The Mayor and the City Secretary, in consultation with the City 
Attorney, are authorized and directed to take all actions necessary to comply with the provisions of 
the Texas Election Code, and the City Code in carrying out and conducting the election, whether or 
not expressly authorized by this Resolution. 
 
Section 11. Election Results. The Freestone County Elections Administrator shall conduct an unofficial 
tabulation of results after the closing of the polls on May 4, 2024. The official canvass, tabulations and 
declaration of the results of the election shall be conducted by the City Council at a regular or special 
meeting held in accordance with provisions of the Texas Election Code. 
 
Section 12.  This resolution shall be effective upon its adoption. 

     
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF TEAGUE, 
TEXAS, ON THIS _________ DAY OF ______________________, 2024, by a vote of ______ (ayes) to 
______ (nays) to ________(abstentions). 
 
 
 
 
       _________________________________ 
       David Huffman, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________________            
D. DeWayne Philpott 
Interim City Secretary                    
 
 



 
 
Resolution 2024-01-19  Page 3 

EXIBIT A 



Page 1 of 13  

PRIMARY ELECTION AGREEMENT AND CONTRACT FOR 
ELECTION SERVICES 

 
 

THIS CONTRACT for election services is made by the Elections Administrator Renee' 
McBay and THE CITY OF TEAGUE. This contract is made pursuant to Texas Election 
Code Sections 31.092 and 271.002 and Texas Education Code Section 11.0581 for a May 
4, 2024, Election to be administered by the Freestone County Elections Administrator. It is 
also agreed that additional political subdivisions located entirely or partially inside the 
boundaries of Freestone County may agree to jointly participate in the election agreement, 
and a copy of each executed agreement shall be provided to each entity by the Administrator. 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, each participating authority plans to hold a UNIFORM ELECTION held on 
MAY 4, 2024, in Freestone County and plans to hold county-wide voting for this UNIFORM 
ELECTION. 

 
WHEREAS The County owns the DS/200, EXPRESSVOTE, ES&S POLLBOOKS Voting 
Systems, which has been duly approved by the Secretary of State pursuant to Texas Election 
Code Chapter 122 as amended and is compliant with the accessibility requirements for 
persons with disabilities set forth by Texas Election Code Section 61.012. The contracting 
political subdivisions (participating authorities) desire to use the County's voting system and 
to compensate the County for such use and to share in certain other expenses connected with 
joint elections, in accordance with the applicable provisions of Chapters 31 and 271 of the 
Texas Election Code, as amended. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, agreements, and benefits to 
all parties, IT IS AGREED as follows: 

 

I. ADMINISTRATION 
 
The participating authorities agree to hold a "Joint Election" with Freestone County and 
each other in accordance with Chapter 271 of the Texas Election Code and this agreement. 
The Elections Administrator shall coordinate, supervise, and handle all aspects of 
administering the Joint Election as provided in this agreement. Each participating authority 
agrees to pay the Elections Administrator for equipment, supplies, services, and 
administrative costs as provided in this agreement. The Elections Administrator shall serve 
as the administrator for the Election; however, each participating authority shall remain 
responsible for the decisions and actions of its officers necessary for the lawful conduct of 
its election. The Elections Administrator shall provide advisory services in connection with 
decisions to be made and actions to be taken by the officers of each participating authority 
as necessary. 

 
It is understood that other political subdivisions may wish to participate in the use of the 
County's voting system and polling places, and it is agreed that Freestone County and the 



Page 2 of 13  

Elections Administrator may enter into other joint election agreements and contracts for 
election services for those purposes on terms and conditions generally similar to those set 
forth in this Contract. Participating authority agrees that Freestone County may enter into 
joint election agreements with other political subdivisions that may have territory located 
partially or wholly within the boundaries of Political Subdivision, and in such case all parties 
sharing common territory shall share a joint ballot on the County's voting system at the 
applicable polling places. In such cases, costs shall be pro-rated among the participants 
according to Attachment A of this Contract. 

 
 

II. LEGAL DOCUMENTS 
 

Each participating authority shall be responsible for the preparation, adoption, and 
publication of all required election orders, resolutions, notices, and any other pertinent 
documents required by the Texas Election Code and/or the participating authority's 
governing body, charter, or ordinances, except that the Elections Administrator shall be 
responsible for the preparation and publication of all voting equipment testing notices that 
are required by the Texas Election Code. Election orders should include language that would 
not necessitate amending the order if any of the Early Voting and/or Election Day polling 
places change. 

 
Preparation of the necessary materials for notices and the official ballot shall be the 
responsibility of each participating authority, including translation to languages other than 
English. Each participating authority shall provide a copy of their respective election orders 
and notices to the Elections Administrator. 

Ill. VOTING LOCATIONS 
 
The Elections Administrator shall select and arrange for the use of and payment for all Early 
Voting and Election Day voting locations. Voting locations will be, whenever possible, the 
usual voting location for each election precinct in elections conducted by each participating 
authority and shall be compliant with the accessibility requirements established by Election 
Code Section 43.034 and the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). All Early Voting and 
Election Day voting locations shall be within the boundaries of Freestone County. The 
proposed voting locations are listed in Attachment B of this agreement. In the event a voting 
location is not available or appropriate, the Elections Administrator will arrange for use of 
an alternate location. The Elections Administrator shall notify the participating authorities 
of any changes from the locations listed in Attachment B. If polling places for the May 4, 
2024 UNIFORM ELECTION are different from the polling place(s) used by a participating 
authority in its most recent election, the authority agrees to post a notice no later than May 
4, 2024 at the entrance to any previous polling places in the jurisdiction stating that the 
polling location has changed and stating the political subdivision's polling place names and 
addresses in effect for the May 4, 2024 election. This notice shall be written in both the 
English and Spanish languages. 



Page 3 of 14  

IV. ELECTION JUDGES, CLERKS, AND OTHER ELECTION PERSONNEL 
 

Freestone County shall be responsible for the appointment of the presiding judge and 
alternate judge for each polling location. The Elections Administrator shall make emergency 
appointments of election officials if necessary. 

 
Upon request by the Elections Administrator, each participating authority agrees to assist in 
recruiting polling place officials who are bilingual (fluent in both English and Spanish). In 
compliance with the Federal Voting Rights Act of 1965, as amended, each polling place 
containing more than 5% Hispanic population as determined by the 2010 Census shall have 
one or more election officials who are fluent in both the English and Spanish languages. If 
a presiding judge is not bilingual, and is unable to appoint a bilingual clerk, the Elections 
Administrator may recommend a bilingual worker for the polling place. If the Elections 
Administrator is unable to recommend or recruit a bilingual worker, the participating 
authority or authorities served by that polling place shall be responsible for recruiting a 
bilingual worker for translation services at that polling place. 

 
The Elections Administrator shall notify all election judges of the eligibility requirements 
of Subchapter C of Chapter 32 of the Texas Election Code and will take the necessary steps 
to ensure that all election judges appointed for the Uniform Election are eligible to serve. 

 
The Elections Administrator shall arrange for the training and compensation of all election 
judges and clerks. 

 
The Elections Administrator shall arrange for the date, time, and place for presiding election 
judges to pick up their election supplies. Each presiding election judge will be sent a letter 
from the Elections Administrator notifying them of their appointment, the dates/times and 
locations of training and distribution of election supplies, and the number of election clerks 
that the presiding judge may appoint. 

 
Each election judge and clerk will receive compensation at the hourly rate established by 
Freestone County pursuant to Texas Election Code Section 32.091. 

The compensation rates established by Freestone County are: 
 

Early Voting- Lead Clerk ($12 an hour), Alternate ($12 an hour) 
Election Day-Presiding Judge ($12 an hour), Alternate Judge ($12 an hour), Clerk ($10 an 
hour) 

 
The Elections Administrator may employ other personnel necessary for the proper 
administration of the election, as well as pre- and post-election administration. In such cases, 
costs shall be pro-rated among the participants of this contract. Part-time help is included 
as is necessary to prepare for the election, to ensure the timely delivery of supplies during 
Early Voting and on Election Day, and for the efficient tabulation of ballots at the central 
cow1ting station. Part-time personnel working in support of the Early Voting Ballot Board 
and/or central counting station on election night will be compensated at the hourly 



Page 4 of 14  

rate set by Freestone County in accordance with Election Code Sections 87.005, 127.004, 
and 127.006. 

V. PREPARATION OF SUPPLIES AND VOTING EQUIPMENT 
 

The Elections Administrator shall arrange for all election supplies and voting equipment 
including, but not limited to, the County's voting system and equipment, official ballots, 
sample ballots, voter registration lists, and all forms, signs, maps and other materials used 
by the election judges at the voting locations. The Elections Administrator shall ensure 
availability of tables and chairs at each polling place and shall procure rented tables and 
chairs for those polling places that do not have tables and/or chairs. Any additional required 
materials (required by the Texas Election Code) must be provided by the Participating 
Authority and delivered to the Elections Office prior to Election Day. The Elections 
Administrator shall be responsible for conducting all required testing of the voting 
equipment, as required by Chapters 127 and 129 of the Texas Election Code. 

 
At each polling location, joint participants shall share voting equipment and supplies to the 
extent possible. The participating authorities shall share a mutual ballot in those precincts 
where jurisdictions overlap. Multiple ballot styles shall be available in those shared polling 
places where jurisdictions do not overlap. The Elections Administrator shall provide the 
necessary voter registration information, maps, instructions, and other information needed 
to enable the election judges in the voting locations that have more than one ballot style to 
conduct a proper election. 

 
Each Participating Authority shall furnish the Elections Administrator a list of candidates 
and/or propositions showing the order and the exact manner in which the candidate names 
and/or proposition(s) are to appear on the official ballot ( including titles and text in each 
language in which the authority's ballot is to be printed). Said list must be provided to the 
Elections Office within five (5) business days following the last day to file for a place on 
the ballot or after the election is ordered, whichever is later. Said list must be in a Word 
document, the information must be in an upper- and lower-case format, be in Arial 12-point 
font, and contain candidate contact information for the purposes of verifying the 
pronunciation of each of the candidates' names. Each participating authority shall be 
responsible for proofreading and approving the ballot insofar as it pertains to that authority's 
candidates and/or propositions. Each participating authority shall be responsible for 
proofing and approving the audio recording of the ballot insofar as it pertains to that 
authority's candidates and/or propositions. The approvals must be finalized with the 
Elections Office within five (5) calendar days of receipt of the proofs, or the provided 
proofs considered approved.  

 
The Election ballots shall list the County's election first. The election ballot that contains 
ballot content for more than one joint participant because of overlapping territory shall be 
arranged with the appropriate districts and ballot content appearing on the ballot following 
the County's election, followed by the appropriate city ballot content, and followed by the 
appropriate water district or special district ballot content. 

Early Voting by Personal Appearance and on Election Day shall be conducted exclusively 
on Freestone County's voting system including provisional ballots. 



Page 5 of 14  

The Elections Administrator shall be responsible for the preparation, testing, and delivery 
of the voting equipment for the election as required by the Election Code. 

 
The Elections Administrator shall conduct criminal background checks on the relevant 
employees upon hiring as required by Election Code 129.051(g). 

 
VI. EARLY VOTING 

 
The participating authorities agree to conduct joint early voting and to appoint the Election 
Administrator as the Early Voting Clerk in accordance with Sections 31.097 and 271.006 of 
the Texas Election Code. Each participating authority agrees to appoint the Elections 
Administrator's permanent county employees as deputy early voting clerks. The 
participating authorities further agree that the Elections Administrator may appoint other 
deputy early voting clerks to assist in the conduct of early voting as necessary, and that these 
additional deputy early voting clerks shall be compensated at an hourly rate set by Freestone 
County pursuant to Section 83.052 of the Texas Election Code. Deputy early voting clerks 
who are permanent employees of the Freestone County Elections Administrator or any 
participating authorities shall serve in that capacity without additional compensation. 

 

Early Voting by personal appearance will be held at the locations, dates, and times listed in 
Attachment B of this document. Any qualified voter of the Uniform Election may vote early 
by personal appearance at any one of the joint early voting locations. 

 
As Early Voting Clerk, the Elections Administrator shall receive applications for early 
voting ballots to be voted by mail in accordance with Chapters 31 and 86 of the Texas 
Election Code. Any requests for early voting ballots to be voted by mail received by the 
participating authorities shall be forwarded immediately by fax or courier to the Elections 
Administrator for processing. The address of the Early Voting Clerk is as follows: 

 
Renee McBay, Election Administrator 
PO Box 1150 
Fairfield, TX 75840 
Email: election.administrator@co.freestone.tx.us  

 
Any requests for early voting ballots to be voted by mail, and the subsequent actual voted 
ballots that are sent by a contract carrier (i.e., UPS, FedEx, etc.) shall be delivered to the 
Early Voting Clerk at the Freestone County Elections Department physical address as 
follows: 

 
Email: election.clerk@co.freestone.tx.us 

 
The Elections Administrator shall post on the county website each participating authority's 
early voting roster on a daily basis and a cumulative final early voting roster following the 
close of early voting. In accordance with Section 87.121(g) of the Election Code, the daily 

mailto:election.administrator@co.freestone.tx.us
mailto:election.clerk@co.freestone.tx.us


Page 6 of 14  

rosters showing the previous day's early voting activity will be posted to the county website 
no later than 11:00 a.m. each business day. 

 
 

VII. EARLY VOTING BALLOT BOARD 
 
Freestone County shall appoint an Early Voting Ballot Board (EVBB) to process early voting 
results from the Uniform Election. The Presiding Judge, with the assistance of the Elections 
Administrator, shall appoint two or more additional members to constitute the EVBB. The 
Elections Administrator shall determine the number of EVBB members required to 
efficiently process the early voting ballots. 

VIII. ELECTION RETURNS 
 
The Elections Administrator shall be responsible for establishing and operating the central 
counting station to receive and tabulate the voted ballots in accordance with the provision. 

 
The Election Administrator shall deliver timely cumulative reports of the election results as 
precincts report to the Election Office and are tabulated by posting on the Election 
Administrator's Election Night Results website. The EA and or Voter Registrar shall be 
responsible for releasing unofficial cumulative totals and precinct returns from the election 
to the joint participants, candidates, press, and general public by distribution of hard copies 
at the election office and by posting to the Elections Administrator's Election Night Results 
website. To ensure the accuracy of reported election returns, results printed on the tapes 
produced by Freestone County's voting equipment will not be released to the participating 
authorities at the remote collection sites or by phone from individual polling locations. 

 
The Elections Administrator will prepare the unofficial canvass reports after all precincts 
have been counted and will deliver a copy of the unofficial canvass to each participating 
authority as soon as possible after all returns have been tabulated. The Elections 
Administrator will include the tabulation and precinct-by-precinct results that are required 
by Texas Election Code Section 67.004 for the participating authorities to conduct their 
respective canvasses. Each participating authority shall be responsible for the official 
canvass of its respective election(s), and shall notify the Elections Administrator, or their 
designee, of the date of the canvass, no later than three days after Election Day. 

 
The Elections Administrator will prepare and deliver by email to each participating 
authority, the electronic precinct-by-precinct results reports for uploading, by the authority, 
to the Secretary of State as required by Section 67.017 of the Election Code. 

 
The Elections Administrator shall be responsible for conducting the post-election manual 
recount required by Section 127.201 of the Texas Election Code unless a waiver is granted 
by the Secretary of State. Notification and copies of the recount, if waiver is denied, will be 
provided to each Participating Authority and the Secretary of State's Office. 



Page 7 of 14  

IX. PARTICIPATING AUTHORITIES WITH TERRITORY OUTSIDE 
FREESTONE COUNTY 

Each participating authority with territory containing population outside of Freestone 
County agrees that the Elections Administrator shall administer only the Freestone County 
portion of those elections. 

X. RUNOFF ELECTIONS 
 

Each participating authority shall have the option of extending the terms of this agreement 
through its runoff election, if applicable. In the event of such runoff election, the terms of 
this agreement shall automatically extend unless the participating authority notifies the 
Elections Administrator in writing within three (3) business days of the original election. 

Each participating authorities shall reserve the right to reduce the number of early voting 
locations and/or Election Day voting locations in a runoff election. 

 
Each participating authority agrees to order any runoff election(s) at its meeting for 
canvassing the votes from the May 4, 2024, election and to conduct its drawing for ballot 
positions at or immediately following such meeting in order to expedite preparations for its 
runoff election. 

 

XI. ELECTION EXPENSES AND ALLOCATION OF COSTS 
 

The participating authorities agree to share the costs of administering the Uniform Election. 
Allocation of the costs, unless specifically stated otherwise, is mutually agreed to be shared 
according to a formula which is based on the number of registered voters within the district 
per Elections Day polling place. Costs for polling places shared by more than one 
participating authority shall be pro-rated equally among the participants utilizing that polling 
place. 

 
It is agreed that the charges for Election Day judges and clerks and Election Day polling 
place rental fees shall be directly charged to the appropriate participating authority rather 
than averaging those costs among all participants. 

 
If a participating authority's election is conducted at more than one Election Day polling 
place, there shall be no charges or fees allocated to the participating authority for the cost of 
the Election Day polling place in which the authority has fewer than 50% of the total 
registered voters served by that polling place, except that if the number of registered voters 
in all of the authority's polling places is less than the 50% threshold, the participating 
authority shall pay a pro-rata share of the cost associated with the polling place where it has 
the greatest number of registered voters. 

 
Costs for Early Voting by Personal Appearance shall be allocated based upon the actual 
costs associated with each early voting site. Each participating authority shall be responsible 
for an equal portion of the actual costs associated with the early voting sites located within 
their jurisdiction. Participating authorities that do not have a regular (non-temporary) early 



Page 8 of 14  

voting site within their jurisdiction shall pay an equal portion of the nearest regular early 
voting site. 

 
Costs for Early Voting by mail shall be allocated according to the actual number of ballots 
mailed to each participating authority's voters. 

 
Each participating authority agrees to pay the Elections Administrator an administrative fee 
equal to ten percent (10%) of its total billable costs in accordance with Section 31.100(d) of 
the Texas Election Code. 

 
The Freestone County Elections Administrator shall deposit all funds payable under this 
contract into the appropriate fund(s) within the county treasury in accordance with Election 
Code Section 31.100. 

 
The Freestone County Elections Administrator reserves the right to adjust the above 
formulas in agreement with an individual jurisdiction if the above formula results in a cost 
allocation that is inequitable. 

 
If any participating authority makes a special request for extra Temporary Branch Early 
Voting by Personal Appearance locations as provided by the Texas Election Code, that entity 
agrees to pay the entire cost for that request. 

 
Participating authorities having the majority of their voters in another county, and fewer than 
500 registered voters in Freestone County, and that do not have an Election Day polling place 
or early voting site within their Freestone County territory shall pay a flat fee of $400 for 
election expenses. 
Election expenses, including but not limited to, overtime charges for Election Office staff, 
and any unforeseen expenses needed to conduct the election, will be borne by the 
participating authority or authorities, affected. 

 
 

XII. WITHDRAWAL FROM CONTRACT DUE TO CANCELLATION OF 
ELECTION 

 
Any participating authority may withdraw from this agreement and the Joint Election should 
it cancel its election in accordance with Sections 2.051 - 2.053 of the Texas Election Code. 
The withdrawing authority is fully liable for any expenses incurred by the Freestone County 
Elections Administrator on behalf of the authority has $75.00 administrative fee. 

 
 

XIII. RECORDS OF THE ELECTION 
 
The Elections Administrator is hereby appointed general custodian of the voted ballots and 
all records of the Uniform Election as authorized by Section 271.010 of the Texas Election 
Code. 



Page 9 of 14  

Access to the election records shall be available to each participating authority as well as to 
the public in accordance with applicable provisions of the Texas Election Code and the 
Texas Public Information Act. The election records shall be stored at the offices of the 
Elections Administrator or at an alternate facility used for storage of county records. The 
Elections Administrator shall ensure that the records are maintained in an orderly manner 
so that the records are clearly identifiable and retrievable. 

Records of the election shall be retained and disposed of in accordance with the provisions 
of Section 66.058 of the Texas Election Code. If records of the election are involved in any 
pending election contest, investigation, litigation, or open records request, the Elections 
Administrator shall maintain the records until final resolution or until final judgment, 
whichever is applicable. It is the responsibility of each participating authority to bring to the 
attention of the Elections Administrator any notice of pending election contest, investigation, 
litigation, or open records request which may be filed with the appropriate participating 
authority. 

XIV. RECOUNTS 

 
A recount may be obtained as provided by Title 13 of the Texas Election Code. By signing 
this document, the presiding officer of the contracting participating authorities agree that 
any recount shall take place at the offices of the Elections Administrator, and that the 
Elections Administrator shall serve as Recount Supervisor, and the participating authority's 
official or employee who performs the duties of a secretary under the Texas Election Code 
shall serve as Recount Coordinator. 

 
The Elections Administrator agrees to provide advisory services to each participating 
authority as necessary to conduct a proper recount. 

XV. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
 

1. It is understood that to the extent space is available, other districts and political 
subdivisions may wish to participate in the use of the County's election equipment and 
voting places, and it is agreed that the Elections Administrator may contract with such 
other districts or political subdivisions for such purposes and that in such event there may 
be an adjustment of the pro-rata share to be paid to the County by the participating 
authorities. 

 
2. The Elections Administrator shall file copies of this document with the Freestone 
County Treasurer and the Freestone County Auditor in accordance with Section 31.099 of 
the Texas Election Code. 

 
3. Nothing in this contract prevents any party from taking appropriate legal action 
against any other party and/or other election personnel for a breach of this contract or a 
violation of the Texas Election Code. 



Page 10 of 14  

4. This agreement shall be construed under and in accord with the laws of the State of 
Texas, and all obligations of the parties created hereunder are performable in Freestone 
County, Texas. 

 
5. In the event that one of more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for 
any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, 
illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof and this agreement 
shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been 
contained herein. 

 
6. All parties shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, and codes of the State 
of Texas, all local governments, and any other entities with local jurisdiction. 

 
7. The waiver by any party of a breach of any provision of this agreement shall not 
operate as or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach. 

 
8. Any amendments of this agreement shall be of no effect unless in writing and signed 
by all parties hereto. 

 
 

XVI. COST ESTIMATES AND DEPOSIT OF FUNDS 
 
The participating authority agrees to pay to Freestone County a deposit of One Thousand 
Dollars ($1,000.00). This deposit shall be paid to Freestone County within thirty (30} 
days after the final candidate filing deadline. The exact amount of each participating 
authority's obligation under the terms of this agreement shall be calculated after the May 
4, 2024, election (or runoff election, if applicable), and if the amount of the Political 
Subdivision's cost obligation exceeds the amount deposited, the participating authority 
shall pay to Freestone County the balance due within thirty (30) days after receipt of the 
final invoice from the Elections Administrator. If, however, the amount of the Political 
Subdivision's cost obligation is less than the amount deposited, then Freestone County 
shall refund to the Political Subdivision the excess amount paid within thirty (30) days 
after final costs are calculated. 

 
 
 

IN TESTIMONY HEREOF, this Contract, its multiple originals all of equal force, has 
been executed on behalf of the parties hereto as follows, to-wit: 

 
It has on the  day of   ,2024 been executed on behalf of 
Freestone County by the Elections Administrator pursuant to the Texas Election Code so 
authorizing; 



Page 11 of 14  

ATTEST: FREESTONE COUNTY, FAIRFIELD, TEXAS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RENEE' MCBAY 
ELECTION ADMINISTRATOR 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTEST: CITY OF TEAGUE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DEWAYNEPHIILPOTT 

 
 
 
 
 
MEMBER MEMBER 



Page 12 of 14  

 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
 
 
 

VOTING EQUIPMENT: 
 

Each represents a per voting machine fee: 
• Early Voting Equipment: $400.00 for early voting entire 2 weeks 

 
• Election Day Voting Equipment $200.00 Election Day Voting only 

 

STAFF FOR ALL POLLING LOCATIONS: 
 

$12.00 per hour 
$12.00 per hour 

Judges: 
Alternate: 

PROGRAMMING EQUIPMENT AND BALLOT PRODUCTION: 
• $1,000.00 for programming and testing equipment 
• .25 cents for each mail ballot 
• $3.50 mail ballot kit plus cost of postage 
• $250.00 audio translation 
• $300.00 election night tallying and reports 

 
ADMINISTRATION FEE: 

• $500.00 per election 



Page 13 of 14  

ATTACHMENT B 
 

EARLY VOTING 
 

WILL BEGIN ON MONDAY, APRIL 22, 2024 - FRIDAY APRIL 26, 2024 
8:00 AM 5:00 PM 

 
AND MONDAY APRIL 29, 2024, AND TUESDAY APRIL 30, 2024 

7:00 AM- 7:00 PM 
 

EARLY VOTING WILL BE HELD AT: 
 

FAIRFIELD CIVIC CENTER (GREEN BARN) 
839 EAST COMMERCE 
FAIRFIELD, TEXAS 758840 

TEAGUE CITY HALL 
105 S. 4th Ave. 
TEAGUE, TEXAS 75860 

 

ELECTION DAY 
 

WILL BE HELD ON MAY 4, 2024 

ELECTION DAY VOTING WILL BE HELD AT: 

FAIRFIELD CIVIC CENTER (GREEN BARN) 
839 EAST COMMERCE 
FAIRFIELD, TEXAS 75840 

 
STREETMAN CJTY HALL 
204 MAIN STREET 
STREETMAN, TEXAS 75859 

 
SOUTHERN OAKS CLUBHOUSE 
111 SOUTHEROAKS DR. 
STREETMAN, TEXAS 75859 

 
BUTLER COMMUNITY CTR 
1604 FM 489 
OAKWOOD, TEXAS 75855 

TEAGUE FIRST BAPTIST 
613 WALNUT STREET 
TEAGUE, TEXAS 75860 

 
WORTHAM COMMUNITY CTR 
105 E. MAIN 
WORTHAM, TEXAS 76693 

 
FREESTONE COMMUNITY CTR 
122 CR. 740 
TEAGUE, TEXAS 75860 

 
DEW SCHOOL LIBRARY 
606 CR 481 
TEAGUE, TEXAS 75860 






























	Ordinance Number 24-01-19.pdf
	CITY OF TEAGUE, TEXAS ORDINANCE NO. 2024-01-19
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF TEAGUE, TEXAS THAT:

	ELECTION RESOLUTION 2024-01-16-B  FOR May 2024 ELECTION with Exhibit A.pdf
	Elections Contract - Freestone County & Teague.pdf
	PRIMARY ELECTION AGREEMENT AND CONTRACT FOR ELECTION SERVICES
	I. ADMINISTRATION
	II. LEGAL DOCUMENTS
	IV. ELECTION JUDGES, CLERKS, AND OTHER ELECTION PERSONNEL
	V. PREPARATION OF SUPPLIES AND VOTING EQUIPMENT
	VI. EARLY VOTING

	VII. EARLY VOTING BALLOT BOARD
	VIII. ELECTION RETURNS
	IX. PARTICIPATING AUTHORITIES WITH TERRITORY OUTSIDE FREESTONE COUNTY
	X. RUNOFF ELECTIONS
	XI. ELECTION EXPENSES AND ALLOCATION OF COSTS
	XII. WITHDRAWAL FROM CONTRACT DUE TO CANCELLATION OF ELECTION
	XIII. RECORDS OF THE ELECTION
	XIV. RECOUNTS
	XV. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
	XVI. COST ESTIMATES AND DEPOSIT OF FUNDS
	Each represents a per voting machine fee:


	EARLY VOTING
	EARLY VOTING WILL BE HELD AT:

	ELECTION DAY
	WILL BE HELD ON MAY 4, 2024 ELECTION DAY VOTING WILL BE HELD AT:






